Planning Committee

MINUTES of the Meeting held in the Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, ME10 3HT on Thursday, 6 March 2025 from 7.00 pm - 8.57 pm.

PRESENT: Councillors Andy Booth, Hayden Brawn, Derek Carnell, Ann Cavanagh, Shelley Cheesman (Substitute for Councillor Kieran Golding), Elliott Jayes (Vice-Chair, in the Chair), Peter Marchington, Ben J Martin, Hannah Perkin (Substitute for Councillor Claire Martin), Julien Speed, Paul Stephen, Terry Thompson, Karen Watson and Tony Winckless.

OFFICERS PRESENT: Andrew Gambrill, Paul Gregory, Ian Harrison, Joanne Johnson, Philippa Richardson and Luke Simpson.

OFFICERS PRESENT (VIRTUALLY): Surinder Atkar.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Mike Whiting.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE (VIRTUALLY): Councillor Dolley Wooster.

APOLOGIES: Councillors Mike Baldock, Simon Clark, Kieran Golding, James Hunt and Claire Martin.

728 Vice-Chair in-the-Chair

Councillor Elliott Jayes (Vice-Chair) took the chair for this meeting and would be referred to as 'Chair' for the remainder of these minutes.

729 Emergency Evacuation Procedure

The Chair outlined the emergency evacuation procedure.

730 Minutes

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 6 February 2025 (Minute Nos. 629 - 640) were taken as read, approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

731 Declarations of Interest

No interests were declared.

732 2.1 - 22/504598/FULL Land At Queenborough Road, Isle of Sheppey, Kent, ME12

2.1 REFERENCE NO 22/504598/FULL

PROPOSAL Erection of Class E(a) retail store with associated parking, access, servicing and landscaping.

SITE LOCATION Land At Queenborough Road, Isle of Sheppey, Kent, ME12 3RJ

WARD Queenborough and Halfway.

PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Queenborough

APPLICANT Lidl Great Britain Ltd AGENT Carney Sweeney

The Team Leader (Planning Applications) introduced the application as set out in the report. He drew attention to the four tabled papers which comprised of: representations from a local resident; representation from consultants acting on behalf of Tesco Stores Limited; response from consultants, acting on behalf of Lidl Great Britain Ltd, to Tesco's comments; and a statement from Queenborough Town Council. The Chair adjourned the meeting at this point to allow Members time to read the tabled papers.

Adam Forsdick, the Applicant, spoke in support of the application.

A visiting Ward Member spoke in support of the application.

A visiting Member spoke against the application.

The Chair moved the officer recommendation to grant planning permission as per the recommendation in the report, and this was seconded by Councillor Tony Winckless.

The Chair invited Members to make comments, and these included:

- Considered this to be well-designed project which would enhance the site;
- had safety concerns with traffic turning right out of the site and suggested a condition be added so that it was 'turn left only';
- welcomed the addition of improved footways for pedestrian access;
- this was the right scheme for this site;
- referring to page 10 of the report, concerned as to whether the reasoning set out was sound and the application really could go ahead as proposed;
- referring to comments from Queenborough Town Council, it was factually incorrect that KCC axed bus routes;
- considered the application offered both residents and visitors more choice on where they shopped; and
- welcome the job opportunities from the scheme.

In response to the comments relating to the access, the Chair reminded Members that Kent County Council (KCC) Highways & Transportation had reviewed the application and had no objections to it.

The Planning Manager (Planning Applications) confirmed that the report had been reviewed with external legal input and officers were satisfied that it was sound.

Resolved: That application 22/504598/FULL be granted as per the recommendation in the report.

733 2.2 - 23/505043/FULL Macknade Service Station, Canterbury Road, Faversham, Kent, ME13 8XA

2.2 REFERENCE NO 23/505043/FULL

PROPOSAL Installation of new EV charging units, equipment compound, substation, boundary fence, landscaping, and associated works

SITE LOCATION Macknade Service Station, Canterbury Road, Faversham, Kent. ME13 8XA

WARD Watling

PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Faversham

APPLICANT Miss Jackie Ford **AGENT** JMS Planning & Development Ltd

The Planning Officer introduced the application as set out in the report. He drew attention to the tabled paper which reported that four additional representations had been received since the report was published. They all raised noise objections to the application. The Planning Officer referred to the report which addressed this issue (paragraph 7.6.7).

Town Councillor Trevor Martin, representing Faversham Town Council, spoke against the application.

Antony Hook, an objector, spoke against the application.

Jackie Ford, the Agent, spoke in support of the application.

The Chair moved the officer recommendation to grant planning permission as per the recommendation in the report, and this was seconded by Councillor Terry Thompson.

The Chair invited Members to make comments, and these included:

- Acknowledged that the proposal would enable a wider provision of EV charging points, but recognised the potential negative impacts of the charging points and the additional traffic it would bring, with associated noise and the impact on residential amenity;
- suggested canopies be added (they had been removed by the applicant) as they could reduce the impacts of light and noise pollution;
- clarification sought on the charge feeds of the rapid chargers;
- it was good to have some EV competition at this location;
- · concerned with light pollution;
- there would be an impact on the A2 as additional vehicles visited this location to charge their vehicles, and slow moving traffic would increase emissions from petrol and diesel traffic on the route;
- considered the proposal would have an impact on the quality of life of the residents who lived near the petrol station; and
- trees were good sound barriers to mitigate the associated noise from those using the chargers.

In response, the Planning Officer explained that the style of the canopies that had been proposed originally were not likely to address any noise issues. They had been removed as the Conservation Officer had considered they were too visible. The Planning Officer referred to the noise assessment report and said that if all the charge units were being used at the same time, the maximum noise level would be 42 decibels, whereas the average background noise was 44 decibels. He explained that the charging time was 15-30 minutes. In response to light pollution concerns, the Planning Officer said the applicant had submitted a light report and he confirmed that the lighting would be down-lit and would not extend beyond the boundary of the site.

Resolved: That application 23/505043/FULL be granted as per the recommendation in the report.

734 2.3 - 24/501929/REM Site A Land At Preston Fields Salters Lane Faversham Kent

2.3 REFERENCE NO 24/501929/REM

PROPOSAL Section 73 - Application for minor material amendment to approved plans condition 1 (to allow changes to affordable housing tenure, revisions to SDS pond and redesign of public open space) pursuant to 23/501167/REM for - Approval of reserved matters (scale, design, layout and landscaping being sought) for the erection of 231 dwellings (houses and apartments, C3 Use Class) with landscaping, associated highway works, including car parking and open space, pursuant to 16/508602/OUT for - Outline application for erection of up to 250 dwellings with all matters reserved except for access.

SITE LOCATION Site A Land At Preston Fields Salters Lane Faversham Kent

WARD Watling

PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Faversham Town Council

APPLICANT Redrow Homes **AGENT** Urbanissta Ltd

The Planning Manager (Planning Applications) introduced the application as set out in the report. He said a letter had been received from the Faversham Community Land Trust who had suggested an alternative housing mix, with a preference for more affordable homes. He said whilst the dwelling size mix had changed, the total remained the same, but now there were more 3-bedroom properties and less 4-bedroom properties.

Town Councillor Trevor Martin, representing Faversham Town Council, spoke against the application.

Jo Hanslip, the Agent, spoke in support of the application.

The Chair moved the officer recommendation to grant planning permission as per the recommendation in the report, and this was seconded by Councillor Hayden Brawn.

The Chair invited Members to make comments, and these included:

- The affordable housing mix should be more in line with the Faversham Neighbourhood Plan which was more up-to-date than the Local Plan;
- disappointed that only 11 registered providers had been contacted;
- considered a mix with 1/2 bedroom properties would be better;
- the developer appeared to be going back on what they had agreed;
- the developers were still offering quite a lot on this development; and
- suggested the application be deferred;

Councillor Tony Winckless moved the following motion: That the application be deferred to enable the developer to seek more registered providers. This was seconded by Councillor Ben J Martin.

Members spoke on the motion to defer the application, and the following comments were made:

Suggested all registered suppliers in Faversham and the east of the Borough be

contacted; and

 clarification sought on the timeline if the application was deferred and any implications of this.

In response, the Planning Manager said that following any talks with the developer and registered providers, the application could return to the Planning Committee quickly, but that there was a risk of non-determination. The Planning Manager explained that the mix of housing was a reflection of talks between the developer and officers, and he considered the resulting mix to be a very good compromise which officers supported.

The Senior Lawyer (Planning) gave advice to the Planning Committee. He said that an application could be deferred for further information, but not to get the applicant to do something else, and so other reasons were needed for the deferment.

Further comments included:

- Concerned that the Council was not securing more affordable homes;
- this application was not compliant with the Faversham Neighbourhood Plan;
- clarification sought on the demand for 4-bedroom shared ownership properties;
- · the Council should not accept a compromise; and
- considered this application should be decided at this meeting, rather than risk non-determination.

The Planning Manager said the mix of accommodation was suitable for families and this aligned with FAV 3 of the Faversham Neighbourhood Plan.

Councillor Ben J Martin made an amendment to the deferral motion: That the application be deferred for additional information to be sought on which associations were contacted by the developer and which were not and the reasons why some associations were not contacted. This was agreed and seconded by the original proposer, Councillor Tony Winckless. On being put to the vote, the motion was agreed.

Resolved: That application 24/501929/REM be deferred for additional information to be sought on which associations were contacted by the developer and which were not and the reasons why some associations were not contacted.

735 **2.4 - 24/503858/FULL Oak Tree Cottage, South Street, Boughton Under Blean, Kent, ME13 9NR**

2.4 REFERENCE NO - 24/503858/FULL

PROPOSAL Demolition of single storey rear extension and erection of single storey rear extension with changes to fenestration and addition of 6no rooflights and bifold door (part retrospective).

SITE LOCATION Oak Tree Cottage, South Street, Boughton Under Blean, Kent, ME13 9NR

WARD Boughton & Courtenay

PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Boughton under Blean

APPLICANT Mrs Kerry Nikolova AGENT Mrs Cherry Baillie

The Team Leader (Planning Applications) introduced the application as set out in the report.

Parish Councillor Moakes, representing Boughton under Blean Parish Council, spoke against the application.

Cherry Baillie, the Agent, spoke in support of the application.

The Chair moved the officer recommendation to grant planning permission as per the recommendation in the report, and this was seconded by Councillor Hayden Brawn.

Resolved: That application 24/503858/FULL be granted as per the recommendation in the report.

736 Part 5 applications

Part 5

Decisions by County Council and Secretary of State, reported for information

Item 5.1 - 31 Brecon Chase, Minster on Sea ME12 2HX

Committee or Officer Decision: DELEGATED REFUSAL

PINS Decision: APPEAL DISMISSED

Item 5.2 - Digswell, Lower Hartlip Road, Hartlip, Kent ME9 7SX

Committee or Officer Decision: DELEGATED REFUSAL

PINS Decision: APPEAL DISMISSED

Members welcomed the results and congratulated officers.

737 Adjournment of Meeting

The meeting was adjourned from 7.07 pm until 7.17 pm and from 8.11 pm until 8.18 pm.

Chair

Copies of this document are available on the Council website http://www.swale.gov.uk/dso/. If you would like hard copies or alternative versions (i.e. large print, audio, different language) we will do our best to accommodate your request please contact Swale Borough Council at Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT or telephone the Customer Service Centre 01795 417850.

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the Committee/Panel